# Brain Tumor Detection and Classification using Novel Image Segmentation Approach for MRI Images

Research Scholar	Guide
Ms. Bhavna K Pancholi	Dr. Pramod S Modi
Assistant Professor	Associate Professor
Department of Electrical Enginerring,	Department of Electrical Enginerring,
Faculty of Technology and Engineering,	Faculty of Technology and Engineering,
The M S University of Baroda,	The M S University of Baroda,
Vadodara	Vadodara

# CONTENTS

1	•	INTRODUCTION	;	
2	•	LITERATURE REVIEW	;	
3	•	OBJECTIVE 4	ŀ	
4	•	PRAPOSED METHOD	;	
	I.	Image Modalities:	;	
	II.	Pre-Processing:	;	
	III	. Segmentation:	;	
	IV	7. Feature Extraction:	,	
	V.	Feature Classification:	,	
5	•	EXPERIMENTAL RESULTS AND DISCUSSSION	;	
	I.	Image Dataset:	;	
	١١.	Pre-Processing:	;	
	III	. Segmentation:	;	
	IV	7. Feature Extraction:	)	
	V.	Feature Classification:	)	
6	•	CONCLUSION	)	
7	•	OUTLINE OF THESIS	)	
8	•	PAPER PUBLISHED	)	
R	REFERENCES			

#### 1. INTRODUCTION

Brain tumors are a serious medical condition that can have a significant impact on a person's life. The early diagnosis of brain tumors provides vital information to help timely treatment and enhance the patient's quality of life. Brain tumour identification and classification is an important topic of study in medical image analysis, with the goal of developing automated techniques for recognising the presence and kind of brain tumours in medical images[1]. MRI imaging is one of the most commonly used modality for brain tumor detection and classification. Traditional MRI images involves manual analysis which is highly time – consuming and susceptible to human errors. Implementation of machine learning approach have efficient and accurate impact on detecting brain tumor[2].

A brain tumor is an abnormal cell growth in the brain. The abnormal cells can be benign and malignant tumors vary in their structural representation. The benign tumors do not have active cancerous cells and have uniformity in structure. It has less destruction in the human body as it has quite a slow movement and does not penetrate the human tissue, while the malignant cells are non-uniform in structure and usually have active cells. It spreads anywhere in the body very fast and removing the tumor tissue from the human body is highly complicated and risky task.

# 2. LITERATURE REVIEW

In the literature review, various sources such as databases, journals, conference proceedings, and books are explored, and specific search terms and filters may be utilized to ensure the discovery of relevant research. This review forms the basis for the research questions, objectives, and methodology. The primary widely used diagnostic tools are medical images generated from ultrasound (US) imaging, MRI and CT scan and due to its non-invasive, safe, and precise nature. Furthermore, photo collection and equipment may bring up unwanted interruptions like speckle distortion, salt and pepper, Poisson and Gaussian noises. Due to the drastic degradation of optical measurements, like image density and intensity, it is difficult to distinguish among regular and diseased cells in medical studies. Therefore, a necessary preprocessing step to achieve the best evaluation is to denoise medical data without changing limits, modifying essential parts of the images, or harming anatomical traits. Brain tumors and other cerebral abnormalities can be diagnosed, graded, treated, and the effectiveness of the therapies can be evaluated using magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) [1]. The categorization of

brain tumors is a difficult issue in the realm of clinical picture analysis. The current research suggests a hybrid approach that makes use of neuro-physics and convolutional neural networks (NS-CNN) [4-6]. It seeks to distinguish between harmless and harmful tumor regions in sections separated from brain pictures. Initially, the neutrosophic group - master greatest fuzzysure entropy (NS-EMFSE) method was used to divide the MRI pictures. During the classification phase, CNN collected the characteristics of the fragmented brain pictures and evaluated them utilizing SVM and KNN algorithms. On 80 benign tumors and 80 malign tumors, an operational assessment predicated on 5-fold cross-validation is conducted. The results showed that CNN characteristics have excellent classification performance across a range of classifications [7,8]. While modelling findings verified source information with a mean accuracy rate of 95.62 percent, actual findings show that CNN characteristics demonstrated a superior categorization efficiency with SVM. By identifying brain tumors as harmless and malignant, the primary objective of this article is to develop an effective automated brain tumor separation method. NS-EMFSE was used to separate brain tumors. Alexnet collected the characteristics of the divided pictures using CNN structures, and SVM and KNN classifiers being used to determine their classification. The deep learning technique that uses feed-forward layers is CNN. The application utilized Matlab 2017b and the MatConvnet library. SVM classifier produced the best results, scoring 95.62% [9,10]. If more photos are utilized in the collection, it is predicted that this reliability percentage would rise. Research on segmentation and classification is among the least often discussed subjects in picture analysis. The renowned and effective segmentation and classification techniques CNN and Neutrosophy can be used, and this could significantly advance picture recognition. I intend to look into how distinct Neutrosophic methods using various CNN topologies affect classification reliability in upcoming research. Depending on a convolutional neural network with neutrosophic professional maximum fuzzy sure entropy, a brain tumor identification algorithm.

# 3. OBJECTIVE

The objective of brain tumor detection is to accurately identify the presence of a tumor in the brain through medical imaging. Creating a software model that is capable of accurately predicting and categorizing brain tumors based on MRI images is the goal of this project. When these systems are applied to MRI images, brain tumor prediction is done very quickly and greater accuracy helps to deliver treatment to patients.

# 4. PRAPOSED METHOD---BRAIN TUMOR DETECTION AND CLASSIFICATION

Image Modalities

Pre-Processing

Segmentation

Feature Extraction

Feature Classification

Basic block diagram for classification of Brain Tumor is shown in Figure 1.



#### I. Image Modalities:

Different types of Image Modalities, like MRI, CT Scan etc. are commonly used in medical imaging. These imaging techniques produce different types of images that can provide valuable information about the body's internal structures, such as the brain, spine, organs, and bones. The use of multiple image modalities in a study can allow researchers to obtain more comprehensive information about a particular disease or condition, as each imaging technique has its own strengths and limitations. Therefore, the selection of appropriate imaging modalities and their proper utilization can significantly impact the accuracy and reliability of the results obtained from a study. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) is a medical imaging technique that uses a strong magnetic field and radio waves to produce detailed images of the body's internal structures. Different types of MRI images are used to highlight different aspects of the body's anatomy and physiology. T1-weighted MRI images are used to highlight the anatomy of tissues, such as the brain, and can help detect abnormalities, such as tumors. T2-Weighted MRI images are used to highlight fluids, such as cerebrospinal fluid (CSF), and can help detect abnormalities, such as edema or inflammation. T2-FLAIR (Fluid Attenuated

Inversion Recovery) MRI images are used to highlight areas of fluid accumulation, such as edema or inflammation, and can help detect abnormalities in the brain, such as tumors. Other types of MRI images, such as diffusion-weighted imaging (DWI), perfusion-weighted imaging (PWI), and magnetic resonance spectroscopy (MRS), can provide additional information about the body's physiology and metabolism, and are used in specialized applications, such as stroke diagnosis and monitoring cancer treatment.

#### II. Pre-Processing:

Pre-processing is a crucial step in medical image analysis that involves removing noise and enhancing image quality to facilitate accurate diagnosis. Various techniques are used in preprocessing, including Weiner, Anisotropic, Median, and Non-Local Means filtering methods. The Weiner filter is a linear filter that is often used to reduce noise in MRI images, and its advantage is its ability to preserve the edges and features in the image. In addition to the Weiner filter, combinations of filters can be used to improve image quality, such as the Weiner filter combined with Anisotropic, Median, or Non-Local Means filters. These combinations can produce even better results, reducing noise and enhancing image quality. Comparative analysis is performed using above methods.

#### III. Segmentation:

Segmentation is the process of partitioning an image into multiple meaningful regions or segments. There are various image segmentation techniques available, such as thresholding, edge detection, clustering, and region-based methods. Among these techniques, thresholding is one of the simplest and widely used techniques. It separates the foreground and background pixels of an image based on a certain threshold value. There are two types of thresholding techniques: bi-level thresholding and multilevel thresholding. Bi-level thresholding separates the pixels into two classes, i.e., foreground and background, while multilevel thresholding divides the pixels into multiple classes. Multilevel thresholding offers several advantages over bi-level thresholding, such as better object detection, improved contrast, and better accuracy. Different multilevel thresholding algorithms are used, like; Adaptive differential evolution with linear population size reduction, Particle Swarm Optimization, Whale Optimization Algorithm, Cuckoo Search, Differential Evolution, Harmony Search etc. One of the efficient method is a nature-inspired optimization algorithm that mimics the behavior of cuckoo birds' breeding and egg-laying habits. It uses the Levy flight distribution to perform random walks to find the

optimal threshold values. The use of the Levy flight distribution allows for better exploration and exploitation of the search space, leading to improved segmentation results. There are various research papers available on the Cuckoo Search Algorithm for image segmentation, and a survey of these papers can be done to determine the best approach for a specific problem. As use of multilevel thresholding Cuckoo Search Algorithm significantly improves the accuracy and efficiency of MRI brain image segmentation, it is implemented.

#### IV. Feature Extraction:

Feature extraction is a critical step in brain tumor detection and classification using MRI images. It involves selecting the most relevant features from the image data that can help in distinguishing between healthy and tumor regions. There are several methods for feature extraction, including DWT (Discrete Wavelet Transform), GLCM (Gray-Level Co-occurrence Matrix), and more. In this proposed algorithm, DWT has been selected as the method for feature extraction. DWT is a popular method for feature extraction from medical images due to its ability to capture both time and frequency information simultaneously. The advantage of using DWT is that it can decompose an image into different frequency bands, which can provide a more detailed representation of the image. A DWT survey for MRI images is conducted to select the best DWT features for the brain tumor detection and classification task. This involves evaluating different DWT coefficients such as LL (low-low), HL (high-low), LH (low-high), and HH (high-high) coefficients, and selecting the most discriminative ones. These selected features can then be used for the next step in the process, which is feature classification.

#### V. Feature Classification:

In feature classification, different methods can be used to categorize the extracted features, such as Support Vector Machine, Linear Discriminator Analysis, k-nearest neighbours, Random Subspace Ensemble etc. Support Vector Machine (SVM) is commonly used for classification tasks in machine learning. SVM is a supervised learning algorithm that can classify data into two or more categories based on the extracted features. It uses a hyperplane to separate the different classes, which maximizes the margin between the classes. SVM has several advantages, including its ability to handle high-dimensional feature spaces and its flexibility in choosing different kernel functions to map the input data to a higher dimensional space.

In the context of brain tumor detection and classification, SVM has been used in several studies to classify MRI images based on extracted features. A survey of SVM-based brain tumor classification studies revealed that different types of features have been used for classification, such as texture features, shape features, and intensity features. The survey also showed that SVM has achieved good accuracy in classifying different types of brain tumors, such as benign and maligant. However, the performance of SVM can be affected by the choice of kernel function and the parameters used in the training process. Therefore, careful tuning of these parameters is necessary to achieve optimal performance.

#### 5. EXPERIMENTAL RESULTS AND DISCUSSSION

All the algorithms are implemented in software and executed on the Core i3, 1.73GHz CPU with 512 GB hard disk. Image Processing toolbox, Wavelet Toolbox, etc available in software.

#### I. Image Dataset:

To validate the accuracy and efficiency of the proposed algorithm for brain tumor detection and classification from the internet dataset (www.kaggle.com) is considered. For validation 400 brain tumor images and 200 no tumor images are used from the internet. Also MRI (1.5Tesla, 16 Channels) Brain images taken from Sahyog Imaging Centre, SSG Hospital, Baroda Medical College, The Maharaja Sayajirao University of the Baroda, Vadodara, Gujarat, India. From the Sahyog Imaging Centre 50 patients data are collected for validation. In this 30 males and 20 females patients, 450 brain tumor images and 250 no tumor images are validate.

## II. Pre-Processing:

Different filters are used, like median, wiener, anisotropic, non-local means and combined filters. The results are compared with statistical parameters, like; PSNR, MSE, RMSE and UQI. In this combined wiener and anisotropic gives the better output compare to the others.

## III. Segmentation:

Multilevel thresholding cuckoo search algorithm is used. Results are compared with different objective functions, like; Otsu, Kapur entropy, Tsallis entropy and combined Otsu and Tsallis entropy. In this Cuckoo Search Algorithm using combined Otsu and tsallis entropy as an objective function gives better output in terms of the region extraction.

#### IV. Feature Extraction:

Discrete Wavelet Transform is used to extract the different features, like; Mean, Standard Deviation, Variance, RMSE, Entropy, Skewness, Kurtosis, Energy, Contrast, Correlation, Inverse Different Moment, and Homogeneity.

#### V. Feature Classification:

Support Vector Machine is used for feature classification. Using Confusion Matrix, find different parameters, like; Sensitivity, Specificity, Positive Predictive Value, Negative Predictive Value and Accuracy. Compare the parameters for Cuckoo Search Algorithm using different objective functions. And finally find which brain tumor is present either benign or malignant.

## 6. CONCLUSION

This research aims to develop a machine learning-based system for the detection and classification of brain tumors. It focus on the detection of both benign and malignant tumors and uses various machine learning techniques to develop a robust and accurate system.

The research covers different aspects of the process, such as image acquisition, pre-processing, segmentation, feature extraction, and feature classification. Pre-processing techniques such as Weiner, Anisotropic, Median, Non Local Means, and different combinations of pre-processing techniques explored to determine the optimal approach. In Pre-processing different parameters-Peak Signal to Noise Ratio, Mean Square Error, Root Mean Square Error and Universal Quality Index; are analysed. Combine weiner and anistropic filter gives the best output. Multilevel thresholding Segmentation technique such as Cuckoo Search algorithm using different objective functions – Ostu's, Kapur Entropy, Tsallis Entropy and combined Ostu's and Tsallisare analysed to determine their effectiveness in detecting and classifying brain tumors. In Segmentation part Cuckoo search algorithm using combined Ostu's and Tsallis objective function gives the best output. In Feature extraction Discrete Wavelet Transform is used. Various parameters like; Contrast, Correlation, Energy, Homogeneity, Mean etc. are used for feature extraction. In the classification Support Vector Machine is used. Using confusion matrix found different parameters like; Accuracy, Sensitivity, Specificity, Positive Predictive Value, Negative Predictive Value and Accuracy. The proposed method gives the best outcome to classify the benign tumor or malignant tumor.

#### 7. OUTLINE OF THESIS

#### **Chapter 1: Introduction**

In this chapter aims to address the limitations and challenges of current methods for brain tumor detection and classification. The introduction provides background information on the significance of this research and outlines the objectives of the study.

#### **Chapter 2: Literature Review**

The literature review section of the thesis examines various studies and research works related to brain tumor detection and classification using image segmentation approaches for MRI images. The literature survey highlights the importance of image segmentation techniques for accurate detection and classification of brain tumors from MRI images, including different parts; like; pre-processing, segmentation, feature extraction and classification.

#### **Chapter 3: Methodology**

This chapter presents the proposed novel image segmentation approach for brain tumor detection and classification using MRI images. It discusses the data collection process, preprocessing, segmentation, feature extraction, and classification used in the study.

#### **Chapter 4: Results analysis**

This chapter presents the results obtained from the different stages; like pre-processing, segmentation, feature extraction and classification. Find the statistical parameters for the different stages and compare the results with the existing methods.

#### **Chapter 5: Conclusion**

This chapter summarizes the main contributions of the study, highlights the key findings, and discusses their implications for future research. It also provides recommendations for healthcare practitioners and policymakers based on the study's findings.

#### 8. PAPER PUBLISHED

[1] B. K. Pancholi and P. S. Modi, "Noise reduction in Clinical MRI Scans employing Filter Combining Techniques," 2022 2nd International Conference on Technological Advancements in Computational Sciences (ICTACS), Tashkent, Uzbekistan, 2022, pp. 474-480, doi: 10.1109/ICTACS56270.2022.9988482, ISBN : 978-1-6654-7658-4, EISBN : 978-1-6654-7657-7

[2] B. K. Pancholi, P. S. Modi and N. G. Chitaliya, "A Review of Noise Reduction Filtering Techniques for MRI Images", 5th International Conference on Contemporary Computing and Informatics (IC3I-2022), Amity University, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh, pp. 954 - 960, doi: 10.1109/IC3I56241.2022.10073389, ISBN : 979-8-3503-9827-4, EISBN:979-8-3503-9826-7

[3] Pancholi B. et al. (2023). A System For Brain Tumor detection and method therefore(Indian Patent Application No. 202321003884). Indian PatentOffice. https://ipindia.gov.in/index.htm

[4] Bhavna Pancholi, Pramod Modi, Nehal Chitaliya, "Clasisifying MRI Images for Cerebral Tumor Using Soft Computing Techniques", Proceedings on Engineering Sciences, Vol 5, no.
2, 2023, ISSN - 2620-2832, doi: 10.24874/PES05.02.014

[5] Bhavna Pancholi, Pramod Modi, Nehal Chitaliya, "The Development of A New Algorithm For Classifying Cerebral Tumors Using MRI Images", awaited

[6] Bhavna Pancholi, Pramod Modi, Nehal Chitaliya, "A novel multithresholding algorithm for segmentation of the MRI images", awaited.

# REFERENCES

- Chahal, Prabhjot Kaur, et al. "A Survey on Brain Tumor Detection Techniques for MR Images." Multimedia Tools and Applications, vol. 79, no. 29-30, 11 May 2020, pp. 21771– 21814, 10.1007/s11042-020-08898-3.
- 2. Nagarajan, I., and G.G. Lakshmi Priya. "Removal of Noise in MRI Images Using a Block Difference Based Filtering Approach." International Journal of Imaging Systems and Technology, vol. 30, no. 1, 10 Aug. 2019, pp. 203–215, 10.1002/ima.22361.
- 3. Maheshan, C. M., and H. Prasanna Kumar. "Performance of Image Pre-Processing Filters for Noise Removal in Transformer Oil Images at Different Temperatures." SN Applied Sciences, vol. 2, no. 1, 11 Dec. 2019, 10.1007/s42452-019-1800-x.
- Jia, Zheshu, and Deyun Chen. "Brain Tumor Identification and Classification of MRI Images Using Deep Learning Techniques." IEEE Access, 2020, pp. 1–1, 10.1109/access.2020.3016319.
- Gayathri, S., et al. "Analyzing, Detecting and Automatic Classification of Different Stages of Brain Tumor Using Region Segmentation and Support Vector Machine." 2020 International Conference on Electronics and Sustainable Communication Systems (ICESC), July 2020, 10.1109/icesc48915.2020.9156057.

- Suresh, Shilpa, and Shyam Lal. "An Efficient Cuckoo Search Algorithm Based Multilevel Thresholding for Segmentation of Satellite Images Using Different Objective Functions." Expert Systems with Applications, vol. 58, Oct. 2016, pp. 184–209, 10.1016/j.eswa.2016.03.032.
- 7. Rahaman, Jarjish, and Mihir Sing. "An Efficient Multilevel Thresholding Based Satellite Image Segmentation Approach Using a New Adaptive Cuckoo Search Algorithm." Expert Systems with Applications, vol. 174, July 2021, p. 114633, 10.1016/j.eswa.2021.114633.
- 8. Yang, Xin-She, and Suash Deb. "Cuckoo Search via Lévy Flights." IEEE Xplore, 1 Dec. 2009, ieeexplore.ieee.org/document/5393690.
- 9. Deng, Qingyu, et al. "Self-Adaptive Image Thresholding within Nonextensive Entropy and the Variance of the Gray-Level Distribution." Entropy, vol. 24, no. 3, 23 Feb. 2022, p. 319, 10.3390/e24030319.
- Kalpana, R., and P. Chandrasekar. "An Optimized Technique for Brain Tumor Classification and Detection with Radiation Dosage Calculation in MR Image." Microprocessors and Microsystems, vol. 72, Feb. 2020, p. 102903, 10.1016/j.micpro.2019.102903.
- P. P. Gumaste and V. K. Bairagi, "A hybrid method for brain tumor detection using advanced textural feature extraction," *Biomed. Pharmacol. J.*, vol. 13, no. 1, pp. 145–157, 2020, doi: 10.13005/bpj/1871.
- E. E.-D. Hemdan, M. A. Shouman, and M. E. Karar, "COVIDX-Net: A Framework of Deep Learning Classifiers to Diagnose COVID-19 in X-Ray Images," 2020, [Online]. Available: http://arxiv.org/abs/2003.11055
- R. Hashemzehi, S. J. S. Mahdavi, M. Kheirabadi, and S. R. Kamel, "Detection of brain tumors from MRI images base on deep learning using hybrid model CNN and NADE," *Biocybern. Biomed. Eng.*, vol. 40, no. 3, pp. 1225–1232, 2020, doi: 10.1016/j.bbe.2020.06.001.
- 14. P. M. Siva Raja and A. V. rani, "Brain tumor classification using a hybrid deep autoencoder with Bayesian fuzzy clustering-based segmentation approach," *Biocybern. Biomed. Eng.*, vol. 40, no. 1, pp. 440–453, 2020, doi: 10.1016/j.bbe.2020.01.006.
- 15. R. J. Kim *et al.*, "Relationship of MRI delayed contrast enhancement to irreversible injury, infarct age, and contractile function.," *Circulation*, vol. 100, no. 19, pp. 1992–2002, Nov. 1999, doi: 10.1161/01.cir.100.19.1992.
- A. Shankar, J. Bomanji, and H. Hyare, "Hybrid pet–MRI imaging in paediatric and tya brain tumours: Clinical applications and challenges," *J. Pers. Med.*, vol. 10, no. 4, pp. 1– 19, 2020, doi: 10.3390/jpm10040218.
- S. Vani Kumari and K. Usha Rani, "Analysis on Various Feature Extraction Methods for Medical Image Classification," no. July, pp. 19–31, 2020, doi: 10.1007/978-3-030-46943-6\_3.
- S. Budhiraja, B. Goyal, A. Dogra, and S. Agrawal, "An Efficient Image Denoising Scheme for Higher Noise Levels Using Spatial Domain Filters," vol. 11, no. June, pp. 625–634, 2018.
- 19. M. Suneetha and M. Subbarao, "An Improved Denoising Of Medical Images Based On Hybrid Filter Approach And Assess Quality Metrics," vol. 9, no. 01, pp. 1566–1568, 2020.
- 20. K. Huang and H. Zhu, "Image Noise Removal Method Based on Improved Nonlocal," vol. 2021, 2021.

- J. Amin, M. Sharif, A. Haldorai, M. Yasmin, and R. S. Nayak, "Brain tumor detection and classification using machine learning: a comprehensive survey," *Complex Intell. Syst.* 2021 84, vol. 8, no. 4, pp. 3161–3183, Nov. 2021, doi: 10.1007/S40747-021-00563-Y.
- 22. E. H. Houssein, M. M. Emam, and A. A. Ali, "Improved manta ray foraging optimization for multi-level thresholding using COVID-19 CT images," *Neural Comput. Appl.*, vol. 33, no. 24, pp. 16899–16919, 2021, doi: 10.1007/s00521-021-06273-3
- I. Aranguren, A. Valdivia, B. Morales-Castañeda, D. Oliva, M. Abd Elaziz, and M. Perez-Cisneros, "Improving the segmentation of magnetic resonance brain images using the LSHADE optimization algorithm," Biomed. Signal Process. Control, vol. 64, no. September 2020, 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.bspc.2020.102259.
- Z. Ye, F. Wang, and R. Kochan, "Image Enhancement based on Whale Optimization Algorithm," Proc. - 15th Int. Conf. Adv. Trends Radioelectron. Telecommun. Comput. Eng. TCSET 2020, pp. 838–841, 2020, doi: 10.1109/TCSET49122.2020.235554.
- 25. A. Faramarzi, M. Heidarinejad, B. Stephens, and S. Mirjalili, "Equilibrium optimizer: A novel optimization algorithm," Knowledge-Based Syst., vol. 191, 2020, doi: 10.1016/j.knosys.2019.105190.
- J. Amin, M. Sharif, M. Raza, T. Saba, and M. A. Anjum, "Brain tumor detection using statistical and machine learning method," Comput. Methods Programs Biomed., vol. 177, pp. 69–79, 2019, doi: 10.1016/j.cmpb.2019.05.015.
- 27. R. Kalpana and P. Chandrasekar, "An optimized technique for brain tumor classification and detection with radiation dosage calculation in MR image," Microprocess. Microsyst., vol. 72, p. 102903, 2020, doi: 10.1016/j.micpro.2019.102903.
- A. I. Poernama, I. Soesanti, and O. Wahyunggoro, "Feature Extraction and Feature Selection Methods in Classification of Brain MRI Images: A Review," 2019 Int. Biomed. Instrum. Technol. Conf. IBITeC 2019, pp. 58–63, 2019, doi: 10.1109/IBITeC46597.2019.9091724.
- W. Ayadi, W. Elhamzi, I. Charfi, and M. Atri, "A hybrid feature extraction approach for brain MRI classification based on Bag-of-words," Biomed. Signal Process. Control, vol. 48, pp. 144–152, 2019, doi: 10.1016/j.bspc.2018.10.010.
- C. S. Rao and K. Karunakara, "Efficient Detection and Classification of Brain Tumor using Kernel based SVM for MRI," Multimed. Tools Appl., vol. 81, no. 5, pp. 7393–7417, 2022, doi: 10.1007/s11042-021-11821-z.